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June 22, 2011

Permit Supervisor

WV-DEP

105 S Railroad St.

Philippi, WV 26416

 

RE:
Renewal of Permit # O101593 (Coresco)

Dear Sir:

 

Please accept these comments on behalf of the approximately 2000 members of the West Virginia Chapter of Sierra Club.
1)       The application for renewal continues to make the improper claim that ash disposal is a “beneficial use”, thereby exempting the facility from a broad range of solid waste rules.  No renewal of this mining permit should be granted which perpetuates the use of the facility for disposal of coal combustion byproducts  (CCBs).  We conclude that the facility is primarily a CCB disposal facility and recommend that it should be regulated as such.
2)       The map (Attachment to MR-17) indicates an underground injection borehole (# 201) and a de-watering borehole.  Disposal of slurry in underground mines creates a serious risk of contamination of surrounding streams.  The renewal of this permit should be conditioned on termination of any UIC permit for the site.  The map with revision 14 (Attachment to Section V-3, Site Plan map) clearly indicates a pipeline to the dewatering borehole, although that is not illustrated on this map.  Given the generally westward down-dip of strata in the region, the applicant should be required to demonstrate that the discharges to the borehole have not re-appeared as ground or surface water discharges elsewhere.  Nearby streams such as Dunkard Creek are already experiencing excessive TDS levels due to mine discharges.  Any material injected into mines from Coresco seems virtually certain to displace water elsewhere which will eventually result in discharges to the surface.  The applicant should be required to provide test data to verify that the injection materials are not discharging to Dunkard Creek or other nearby waterways.  The permit renewal should be conditioned on termination of any UIC permit, as well as requirements for more detailed ground and surface water monitoring to determine the extent to which off-site water pollution may have occurred, and remediation of any contamination of the groundwater/mine pool that may have occurred.
3)      We object to the amount of CCBs being used for neutralizing any acid mine drainage from the coal waste.  Since the overburden is alkaline, relatively little additional neutralization appears to be needed.  In fact, in a memo July 9, 1996 from Ron Sturm, it was concluded that the overburden, by itself, provided adequate neutralization.  The mining permit required that overburden be mixed with coal refuse in a ratio of 20 % overburden, 80 % coal refuse, and this composite ratio was the basis for the bond on the site.  Based on these data, it is difficult to understand how a 5:1 ratio of CCB to coal refuse could be allowed.  It appears to be based on the formula in Attachment  V-3 of revision 14 (page 4), which includes factors of 3.125 and 1.1 neither of which appear to be justified.  The formula also fails to account for the neutralization potential of the overburden that is on site.  Attachment V-3 of Revision 15 appears similar, and contains the same formula, except that it uses the Connemaugh CCBs as a surrogate for Longview CCBs.  Thus, this formula for neutralizing the refuse appears to be little more than an effort to justify the claim of a beneficial use for CCB disposal at this site.  Since the neutralizing potential for the CCBs far exceeds the acid-forming potential of the coal refuse, the beneficial use exemption should not be allowed.  The site should be considered a CCB waste disposal site, and should be required to comply with all relevant waste disposal rules.
4)      We object to the use of surrogate CCB samples to be used in lieu of the actual Longview coal ash and FGD byproducts for acid-base accounting and leaching tests, as discussed in revisions 14 and 15 of the permit.  According to press accounts, Longview has been undergoing combustion testing with coal from some time, hence no permit renewal should be granted unless and until the actual material used at Longview, and the fly ash and bottom ash and FGD wastes from Longview are used for acid-base accounting and leaching tests.
5)      We further object to the use of the TCLP to assess leaching of toxic elements from the CCBs.  It has been known for many years that the TCLP underestimates the amount of material leached from CCBs, especially when those CCBs are in contact with acid-forming materials from coal wastes, precisely the case that applies here.  EPA has clearly documented the inadequacies of the TCLP to assess the potential for toxic metals to leach from CCBs (Kosson, et al. 2009.  Characterization of coal combustion residues from electric utilities – Leaching and characterization data.  EPA-600/R-19/151).  They recommend a range of alternative leaching tests that more accurately quantify the potential for leaching from coal combustion residues.  In essence, the TCLP test so greatly underestimates the leaching of hazardous materials that it simply is not a meaningful analysis of the potential hazard.  We recommend that no permit renewal be granted unless and until the full suite of EPA’s recommended CCB leaching tests be conducted.
6)      Contradictory information on the thickness of the lifts is presented.  Attachment V-3 of revisions 15 suggests that the lifts will include 2 feet of coal waste covered by four feet of CCBs.  But Attachment MR-36-II-1 of Revisions 14 states that lifts will include up to five feet of coal waste covered by up to five feet of CCBs.  Both documents state that when CCBs are not being used to cover coal waste, they will be placed in two-foot lifts.  This appears to be a further admission that the purpose of the fill is CCB disposal, not a beneficial use for mineland reclamation.  Thus we recommend that the beneficial use exemption not be permitted for this renewal, and that the site apply for a permit as a solid waste disposal facility.
7)      The application narrative in revision 15 indicates that a part of the area would also be used for coal storage, however, no mention of any acid neutralization or water treatment for run-off from this area is included.  We recommend that the renewal of the permit be conditioned on assurances that run-off treatment and dust suppression be included.
8)  Certain maps indicate additional boreholes not shown in the application.  Burying boreholes with CCBs is certain to short-circuit any effort to contain and treat water from the CCB pile.  Given the northwestward dip of the seams in the area, it seems likely that water discharged to deep mines could emerge offsite in watersheds such as Dunkard Creek.  We recommend that no boreholes be permitted as a condition of permit renewal, and that any existing discharges to deep mines cease.  As stated in # 2 (above), additional monitoring data should be required to determine the extent of contamination from any discharges that have already occurred, and remediation of the groundwater/mine pools should be required.

 

In summary, this is not a typical permit renewal.  Numerous changes have received no public comment or review, yet have the potential to substantially affect air and water quality.  In particular, the facility is clearly a solid waste disposal facility, thus a surface mine permit renewal is inappropriate and should be denied.  We therefore request a public meeting to address these issues before WV-DEP makes any decision on this permit renewal.
 

Sincerely,

 

 






James Kotcon, Chair






Energy Committee






304-594-3322 (home)
